
Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Supplementary information
Tuesday, January 18, 2022, 7:00pm

Zoom meeting
502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard President

The Hood River County Library District is taking steps to limit exposure and spread of COVID-19 
(novel coronavirus). In support of state and federal guidelines for physical distancing, the Hood River 
County Library District will hold this meeting by using Zoom Conferencing. 

Please use the following phone number or video link: 
1-253-215-8782 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88987942233
Meeting ID: 889 8794 2233

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard
II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard
III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from December 21, 2021 meeting
IV. Open forum for the general public     Sheppard
V. Audit presentation Kamp 
VI. Reports 
VII. Old Business

i. Safety Cascade Locks and Parkdale branches discussion         Fox
VIII.New Business

i. Exterior bookmobile                                                                                       Fox   
ii. Personnel support during the pandemic                                                        Fox

IX. Agenda items for next meeting                                                                      Sheppard
X. Adjournment                                                                                            
_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive Session 
may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current meeting's 
executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the Jeanne Marie 
Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language interpretation 
for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.

Board meeting agenda [2022-01-18] 1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88987942233


Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Supplementary information
Tuesday, January 18, 2022, 7:00pm

Zoom meeting
502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard President

The Hood River County Library District is taking steps to limit exposure and spread of COVID-19 
(novel coronavirus). In support of state and federal guidelines for physical distancing, the Hood River 
County Library District will hold this meeting by using Zoom Conferencing. 

Please use the following phone number or video link: 
1-253-215-8782 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88987942233
Meeting ID: 889 8794 2233

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard
II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard
III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from December 21, 2021 meeting
Attachment: III.i. Minutes from the December 21, 2021, regular meeting

IV. Open forum for the general public     Sheppard
 

V. Audit presentation Kamp 
Attachments: 

i. V.i. Audit 2020-21 – Communication to the governing body
ii. V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report

Tiffany Elvrum of Pauly Rogers and Co., PC, will present the District's 2020-21 fiscal year
audit via Zoom. The audit documents are attached (the letter to the governing body and the financial 
report). There are also bound copies for District Board members available at the main circulation desk
at the Hood River Library. 

The letter to the governing body is an overview of the findings of the audit, while the financial report 
is the detailed findings and numbers themselves. Please bring any questions you have to the meeting.  

VI. Reports 
i. Friends update   Fox

• The Friends of the Library did not meet in December or January. 
• The Friends are offering the book, Aakki- Dakkito Zoomorphic: An A to Z Encyclopedia

of Hood River County  for sale. This book is full of history, facts and interesting 
information about the Hood River area. It is available for $10.00. Patrons can find a 

Board meeting agenda [2022-01-18], supplementary info update 2

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88987942233


copy for sale on the Friends Book Shelves. Patrons can pay for the book at the check 
out desk.  

ii. Foundation update Fox
• In lieu of Feast of Words, the Foundation will have a Special Appeals Mailing. This year 

the Foundation will raise funds to restore the main entrance to the Hood River Library.
The cost of the project is $25,000. I will also apply for grants to help support this 
project. This project was the focus of the Feast of Words in 2020 but the event was 
canceled due to the pandemic.

• The Foundation has raised over $20,000 with their end of year mailing which includes a
request for donations and renewal of memberships.

• The Foundation is working on plans to increase awareness for their Legacy Giving 
campaign. 

iii. November 2021 Financial Statements                                       Fox
Attachment: VI.iii. November 2021 Financial Statements

With the November property tax deadline, the District now has received about 86% of the current 
taxes for the 2021-22 fiscal year. We will receive the rest of the funds in two installments in February 
and May when tax payers complete their payment plans. As of December 1, 2021 we have $1,710,328 
in total current assets. This includes $1,408,175 for the General Fund, $181,719 for the Grants Fund, 
and $120,434 for the Capital Equipment Reserve fund. 

The December financial statements were not available at the time the board packet was released.

iv. Director’s Report                                        Fox

• Administration  
◦ Our Children’s Services Assistant Sarah Ryan left the Library District at the end of 

December. She will be spending more time at home with her family. We will open the 30 
hour per week position this month. 

◦ We will be renewing our Metropolitan Interlibrary eXchange (MIX) agreement before the 
end of this fiscal year. The MIX agreement allows residents of Clackamas, Hood River,
Multnomah and Washington counties in Oregon and residents within the City of Camas 
and Fort Vancouver Regional Library system in Washington to get free library cards in any 
of the other jurisdictions. It is generally a five-year agreement, and it expires at the end of 
June. 

The agreement is not ready for approval by the board yet. It is currently being reviewed by 
the legal counsel of each entity, including our own legal counsel Ruben Cleaveland. Once 
the agreement is approved, I will present the final copy for approval.

Page 2

Board meeting agenda [2022-01-18], supplementary info update 3



• Facilities  
  The architectural firm FAA has given the Library  
   District a model of the Hood River Library. The model 
   was created when the firm did the 
   expansion/renovation of the library. The expansion 
   was completed in 2004. The model sat in their 
   Portland office for nearly 20 years. The model is on a 
   display table on the upper level of the library.

• Programs and Services  
◦ In-Person Programming paused through the end of January. In light of the increase in cases 

and recent data suggesting that COVID cases will continue to increase throughout the 
month of January, we have paused all in-person programs at the library for this month. We 
will reassess the situation at the end of the month and determine whether we will resume 
in-person programs in February. 

◦ The program staff have been working hard to provide creative programming for this winter.
Please check out our newsletter for a full list of programs in January, 
http://conta.cc/2XWJNne.

◦ We now have toy kits for children to check out for in-house use. This allows families to 
come and play again at the library. There are alcohol wipes available for caregivers to use to
wipe down the toys between use. 

◦ The MakerSpace Table is open again for projects to-go. Patrons can fill a bag with supplies 
to create their art at home! Patrons can bring in their creation or email a photo of it to 
display in the children's library. Limit: 1 kit per person per week. Kits are take-away only.

◦ Sage Library System App 
▪ The SAGE app allows patron to check on their holds, place holds, and renew items. The 

app is available for apple and android devices. 

◦ Library of Things 
▪ Metal Detectors, Nintendo Switches, Puzzles and More to Checkout!
▪ Winter brings with it a fresh batch of new items to the Library of Things! This month 

we are highlighting some of our new and classic games. From Catan to Clue to 
Terraforming Mars to Codenames: Pictures to Hungy Hungry Hippos, we've got 
something fun for all ages and skill levels. 

▪ Click this link for a full list of items or to place a hold in Sage: Library of Things  .   

Page 3

Board meeting agenda [2022-01-18], supplementary info update 4

https://hood.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/results?query=&qtype=keyword&fg%3Amat_format=23&locg=208&detail_record_view=1
https://catalog.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/record/2260384?detail_record_view=1;fg%3Amat_format=23;locg=208;pubdate=is
https://catalog.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/record/2260155?detail_record_view=1;fg%3Amat_format=23;locg=208;pubdate=is
https://catalog.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/record/2324580?detail_record_view=1;fg%3Amat_format=23;locg=208;pubdate=is
https://catalog.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/record/2324569?detail_record_view=1;fg%3Amat_format=23;locg=208;pubdate=is
https://catalog.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/record/2260154?detail_record_view=1;fg%3Amat_format=23;locg=208;pubdate=is
http://conta.cc/2XWJNne


▪ We have also recently remodeled our Library of Things area. We encourage folks to 
come in and take a look around.

Click the links below to see more details and

place holds on items.

Games. Steam Kits. Nintendo Switch Karaoke Machine.
Cooking. Baking Cordless Drill.   Ice Cream Maker   

Cider Press Metal Detector Sewing Machine 

VII. Old Business
i. Safety Cascade Locks and Parkdale branches discussion Fox

I would like to continue the discussion regarding safety at the branches. 

Due to the concern for staff safety since staff work solo at the branches, our safety committee added 
safety measures at both the Cascade Locks and Parkdale branches. 

• Staff park in designated areas which are easily accessed from each library.
• We installed a siren alarm at each branch. The sirens issue a loud sound and flashing lights if 

activated. 
• We are temporarily using a doorbells system at the Cascade Locks branch to gain access to 

the library. This is the same system we used during Curbside Services. Staff were uneasy about 
working alone at the branch since we do not have the staffing capacity to have two staff 
members for every shifts. This procedures has been working well. We have decided to continue
this practice until March 2022.

• We have purchased flash lights for staff members working at each branch. In addition, I will 
purchase a motion light we can install in a window at the Cascade Locks Library which will 
illuminate the parking area for staff. Both Cascade Locks and Parkdale have exterior lights 
outside the front entrance and street lights which illuminate the area.

• The board approved adding a panic button which will automatically call police or emergency 
dispatchers with the press of a button. The device should arrive at the branches this month.

 
I’d like to discuss a few additional measures.

Page 4

Board meeting agenda [2022-01-18], supplementary info update 5

https://catalog.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/record/2310569?locg=208;detail_record_view=1;page=0;query=sewing%20machine
https://catalog.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/record/2311462?locg=208;detail_record_view=1;query=metal%20detector
https://catalog.sage.eou.edu/eg/staff/cat/catalog/record/2310603?query=cider%20press
https://hood.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/record/2308877?locg=208;detail_record_view=1;query=ice%20cream%20maker
https://catalog.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/record/2268394?locg=1;query=cordless%20drill
https://hood.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/results?qtype=keyword;fg%3Amat_format=23;locg=208;detail_record_view=1;facet=subject%7Ctopic%5BCooking%5D;facet=subject%7Ctopic%5BBaking%5D
https://hood.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/results?qtype=keyword;fg%3Amat_format=23;locg=208;detail_record_view=1;facet=subject%7Ctopic%5BCooking%5D
https://hood.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/record/2253381?query=karaoke%20machine;qtype=keyword;fg%3Amat_format=23;locg=208;detail_record_view=1;_adv=1;page=0
https://hood.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/record/2077805?query=nintendo%20switch;qtype=keyword;fg%3Amat_format=23;locg=208;detail_record_view=1;sort=
https://hood.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/results?query=steAM+KIT&qtype=keyword&fg%3Amat_format=23&locg=208&detail_record_view=1&sort=
https://hood.sage.eou.edu/eg/opac/results?qtype=keyword;fg%3Amat_format=23;locg=208;detail_record_view=1;facet=subject%7Ctopic%5BGames%5D


• Install a video surveillance system run by an independent firm at each branch. We would need 
to post signage alerting patrons. This is required by law and hopefully would also deter any 
criminal activity. 

• Reduce the evening hours at each branch January-March this year. This fall and winter we rarely
have patrons visit the branch libraries between 6-7pm. This means staff are completely alone 
during this time without other patrons present. I think it would be safer and more efficient use 
of staff time. We can move the staff to the main branch until the end of March. This equals five 
desk hours for staff: Tuesday, Wednesdays and Thursday in Parkdale and Tuesdays and Thursdays 
in Cascade Locks. We have shifts that can be covered and several side projects we are 
currently working on. 

VIII.New Business
i. Exterior bookmobile                                                                                            Fox

Attachment: VIII.i. Bookmobile exterior
                                                           
I would like to discuss the first draft of the exterior of the bookmobile. I have already received a 
variety of feedback from library staff and Library Foundation members. I will share the feedback at the 
meeting. 

ii. Personnel support during the pandemic Fox
I would like to request the library district take two measures to support our staff and keep our staff 
safe during the pandemic. 

1) Tests
• We require a negative test for staff to return to work after they test positive for COVID. Due 

to the shortened period recommended by the CDC, this would allow the District reassurance 
library staff are no longer contagious when they return to work.

• Provide tests for staff members to return to work after testing positive for COVID and 
provide tests for staff that are close contacts to someone that tested positive for COVID.

2) Paid leave library staff
• We allow one week paid sick leave for library staff members in the following circumstances. 

The leave would be prorated based upon their weekly hours.
◦ If the employee is unable to work (or unable to telework) due to a need for leave because 

the employee:

▪ Is subject to a Federal, State, or local quarantine or isolation order related to 
COVID-19;

▪ Has been advised by a health care provider to self-quarantine related to COVID-19;
▪ Is experiencing COVID-19 symptoms and is seeking a medical diagnosis;
▪ Is caring for an individual subject to an order described in (1) or self-quarantine as 

described in (2);
▪ is caring for a child whose school or place of care is closed (or child care provider 

is unavailable) for reasons related to COVID-19; or
▪ is experiencing any other substantially-similar condition specified by the Secretary 

of Health and Human Services, in consultation with the Secretaries of Labor and 
Treasury.

Page 5

Board meeting agenda [2022-01-18], supplementary info update 6



If every staff member were to take advantage of this leave, it would costs the District $9,000. We 
currently have $4,500 extra funds in our personnel budget to support these costs due to the 
departure of our Children’s Service’s staff member. I do not anticipate every staff member needing to 
use this leave. It would help support staff if they needed to use leave related to COVID. 

We have the funds in our reserve to cover this cost. 

Reserve
• Carry over $857,401 - $426,996 needed for July-November 2021 = $430,405.
• Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance $430,405 - $100,000 reserve for contingency = 

$330,405. 
• Add $120,434 Capital Fund
• Total = $450,839.

• Capital projects – 20 years
◦ Total = $370,000

• Unallocated: $80,839.
For a complete breakdown of the cost of capital projects, please access the September 21, 2021 board
packet. https://hoodriverlibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/Board-Meeting-Packet-2021-09-21.pdf.

IX. Agenda items for next meeting  Sheppard
• Renew contract legal counsel Ruben Cleaveland
• Budget calendar approval and budget discussion
• Review proposals for Strategic Planning process
• Personnel Policy

X. Adjournment                                                                                            
_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, Executive Session 
may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled for the current meeting's 
executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the Jeanne Marie 
Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign language interpretation 
for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is given.

Page 6

Board meeting agenda [2022-01-18], supplementary info update 7

https://hoodriverlibrary.org/wp-content/uploads/Board-Meeting-Packet-2021-09-21.pdf


Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Minutes

Supplementary information
Tuesday, December 21, 2021, 7:00pm

Zoom meeting
502 State St, Hood River

Karen Bureker, Vice President

Present: Karen Bureker, Brian Hackett, Megan Janick, Sara Marsden and Mo Burford (staff).

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Bureker

Library Board Vice President Karen Bureker called the meeting to order at 7:01pm. Marsden 
made a motion to approve the agenda. Janik seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Bureker
None stated. 

III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Bureker

i. Minutes from November 16, 2021 meeting
Hackett moved to approve the consent agenda. Janik seconded. The motion carried 
unanimously.

IV. Open forum for the general public     Bureker
None present. 

V. New business   

i. Safety Cascade Locks and Parkdale branches discussion Burford
Burford explained the most recent incident at the Cascade Locks branch to the board and the 
follow-up by Fox and Burford, then explained increased safety measures and answered 
questions. Board was in supportive of increased safety measures. Bureker wanted to know if 
it was legal for staff to have pepper spray; Bureker also wanted to know about the possibility 
of having our own cameras in the library and our own light outside the building. Burford 
thought this might be complicated by our agreement with the school, but would look into it 
further. Burford also said he believed the lawyer vetted approval of staff having their own 
pepper spray, but not supplied by HRCLD, but Karen wanted a double-check, thought it might
be a legal gray area. Board said they would support the buying of Solo devices for branch 
staff. Board generally wanted to make a long term goal of improved safety at the branches. 

ii. Insurance Renewal (ACTION)       Burford

III.i. Minutes from the December 21, 2021, regular meeting 8



Hackett voted to approve the insurance renewal. Marsden seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

iii. Strategic plan document (ACTION)     Burford
Marsden voted to approve the strategic plan document. Marsden seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

VI. Agenda items for next meeting  Bureker
• Audit report FY 2020-21
• Policy

VII. Adjournment
The meeting was adjourned at 7:33pm.                                

Page 2

III.i. Minutes from the December 21, 2021, regular meeting 9



V.i. Audit 2020-21 – Communication to the governing body 10



V.i. Audit 2020-21 – Communication to the governing body 11



V.i. Audit 2020-21 – Communication to the governing body 12



V.i. Audit 2020-21 – Communication to the governing body 13



V.i. Audit 2020-21 – Communication to the governing body 14



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

HOOD RIVER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
HOOD RIVER COUNTY, OREGON 

 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

 
FINANCIAL REPORT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
12700 SW 72nd Ave. 
Tigard, OR  97223 

 
 

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 15



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HOOD RIVER COUNTY  LIBRARY DISTRICT 
HOOD RIVER COUNTY, OREGON 

 
 

2020-21 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT 
 

****** 

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 16



 

 

HOOD RIVER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
HOOD RIVER COUNTY, OREGON 

 
  

2020-21 
 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS TERM EXPIRES 
 
 
Karen Bureker, Vice President  June 30, 2021 
 
 
Brian Hackett June 30, 2023 
 
 
Jean Sheppard, President  June 30, 2023 
 

 
Sara Marsden June 30, 2021  
 
 
Megan Janik June 30, 2021 

 
  
 

 
  
  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

All Board members receive mail at the District office address below: 
 
 
  

REGISTERED OFFICE 
 

Rachael Fox, Library Director 
Hood River County Library District 

502 State Street 
Hood River, Oregon  97031

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 17



 

 

HOOD RIVER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
HOOD RIVER COUNTY 

 
T A B L E O F C O N T E N T S 

     PAGE 
     NUMBER 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 1 
 
OTHER INFORMATION 
 
 MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 4 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
  Government-Wide Financial Statements: 
   Statement of Net Position – Modified Cash Basis 8 
   Statement of Activities – Modified Cash Basis 9 
  Fund Financial Statements:  
   Balance Sheet – Modified Cash Basis – Governmental Funds 10 
   Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet  
    to the Statement of Net Position   11 
   Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
    Balances – Modified Cash Basis – Governmental Funds   12 
   Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,  
    Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities   13 
 
  Notes to Basic Financial Statements 14 
 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
  Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance – Modified Cash Basis – 
   Actual and Budget:  
   General Fund 23 
   Grants Fund 25 
   Capital Equipment Reserve Fund 26 
     
REPORTS ON LEGAL AND OTHER REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
  
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS 27 
  
 
 
 

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 18



 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 
12700 SW 72nd Ave. ♦ Tigard, OR  97223 
(503) 620-2632 ♦ (503) 684-7523 FAX 
www.paulyrogersandcocpas.com 

 
 

-1- 
 

            
   
           November 19, 2021 
 
To the Board of Directors   
Hood River County Library District 
Hood River County, Oregon  
 
 INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT  
  

Report on the Financial Statements 
 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of Hood 
River County Library District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1; this includes determining that the modified cash basis of 
accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statements in the circumstances.  Management is 
also responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
Auditor's Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

 
   
 
 
 

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 19



 

-2- 

Opinions 
 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective modified 
cash basis financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund of Hood River County Library District, 
as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting.  The financial 
statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our opinions are not modified with respect to this 
matter. 

 
Other Matters 

 
Other Information 

 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
basic financial statements. The supplementary and other information, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  

The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of management and was 
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements 
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information, as 
listed in the table of contents, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements 
as a whole. 

The listing of board members containing their term expiration dates, located before the table of contents, 
management’s discussion and analysis and the other information, as listed in the table of contents, have not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 20



 

-2- 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our 
report dated November 19, 2021, on our consideration of compliance with certain provisions of laws and 
regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing and 
not to provide an opinion on compliance. 
 

 

 

                               Tara M. Kamp, CPA 
PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 21

TaraK
Text Box
-3-



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSISFOR  
THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

 
 
As management of Hood River County Library District (the District), we offer the readers of the District’s 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2021. The analysis focuses on significant financial issues, major financial activities and resulting changes in 
financial position, budget changes, and variances from the budget. We encourage readers to consider the 
information presented here in conjunction with the District’s Financial Statements and Notes to Financial 
Statements, which follow this Management’s Discussion and Analysis. 
 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
During the year, the District's net position increased by $320,592, from $939,652 to $1,260,244. At June 30, 
2021, the District’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $1,222,585. 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Management has determined that the modified cash basis of accounting is appropriate for the District due to its 
lack of complexity and the necessity to account for, and plan for, the cash needed to operate the District. 
 
The District’s basic financial statements consist of three components: 

1. Government-wide financial statements, 
2. Fund financial statements, and 
3. Notes to the basic financial statements. 

 
This report also contains supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements. 
The government–wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
District’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statements include: 
 

The Statement of Net Position: The statement of net position presents information on all of the assets and 
liabilities of the District at year-end. Net position are what remain after the liabilities have been paid or 
otherwise satisfied. Over time, increases or decreases in net position serve as a useful indicator of whether 
the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. It also provides the basis for evaluating 
the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. 

 
The Statement of Activities: The statement of activities presents information showing how the net position of 
the District changed over the year, tracking revenues, expenses and other transactions that increase or reduce 
net position. All changes in net position are reported at the timing of the cash flows. 

 
In the government-wide financial statements the District’s activities are shown in one category: 

 
Governmental activities: The District’s basic functions are shown here, such as personal services and 
materials & services. These activities are financed primarily through local, state, and federal grants, fees 
charged for services, intergovernmental agreements, and property taxes. 

 

-4- 

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 22



Fund Financial Statements 
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds, focusing on its most 
significant funds, not the District as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state 
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. All of the funds of the District are governmental funds. 
 
Governmental Funds 
The governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities, in the governmental-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable 
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information 
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Both the governmental fund Balance Sheet 
& Statement of Revenues and Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balance are reconciled to the government-wide 
Statements of Net Position & Statement of Activities.   
 
The District maintained four individual governmental funds: General Fund, Grants Fund, Capital Equipment 
Reserve Fund. 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
The notes provide additional disclosures required by governmental accounting standards and provide 
information to assist the reader in understanding the District’s financial condition. 
 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
A condensed statement of net position for 2020 and 2021 is listed below: 

 
The revenues and expenses below explain the change in net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-5-

Net Position

ASSETS: 2020 2021
Cash and cash equivalents $893,369 $1,226,078
Employee draws $2,550 $0
Property Taxes Receivable $62,684 $54,525
    Total Assets $958,603 $1,280,603

LIABILITIES:
Compensated absences $18,951 $16,866
Payroll liabilities $0 $3,493

$18,951 $20,359
NET POSITION:

$939,652 $1,260,244

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 23



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revenues 
During the 2020-21 fiscal year, 13.9% of the cost of the District’s operations were funded by operating grants 
and contributions, compared to 5.2% in 2019-20. The remaining 86.1% came from property taxes, user fees, 
intergovernmental agreements, and other sources. 
 
Fund Financial Analysis 
The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable 
resources. Unreserved fund balance measures the District’s net resources available to spend in the next fiscal 
year. These amounts are available to use, in accordance with applicable restrictions on the nature of the 
expenditures. 
 
As of June 30, 2021, the District’s governmental funds reported combined unassigned ending fund balance of 
$845,453, an increase of $173,921 compared to 2020. It was $338,044 more than the $507,409 unappropriated 
ending fund balance budgeted for the 2020-21 fiscal year. 
 
The General Fund had revenue and expenditures of $1,101,326 and $907,405 respectively. Revenues increased 
9.7% and expenditures increased 0.3% over the 2019-20 fiscal year. Overall, the General Fund balance increased 
from $671,532 to $845,453. 
 
In addition, a transfer of $20,000 was made to the Capital Equipment Reserve Fund. 
 
The Grant Fund had revenues and expenditures of $208,981 and $71,699 respectively, leaving a fund balance of 
$251,794. 
 
The Capital Equipment Reserve Fund received a transfer from the General Fund of $20,000. In addition, there 
was $637 in interest revenue and expenditures were $5,174, leaving a fund balance of $125,338. 

-6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6--6-

Changes in Net Position
Activities % of total Activities % of total
2019-20 2020-21

Operating Revenues:
Charges for services $12,299 1.1% $1,087 0.1%
Operating Grants and Contributions $55,423 5.2% $181,365 13.9%
   Total Operating Revenues $67,722 6.30% $182,452 14.00%

General Revenues:
Property Taxes $976,189 90.8% $1,081,078 83.0%
Interest on Investments $18,537 1.7% $7,136 0.5%
Other Revenues $12,105 1.1% $32,119 2.5%
Total General Revenues $1,006,831 93.7% $1,120,333 86.0%
   Total Revenues $1,074,553 $1,302,785

Operating Expenditures:
General Operations $1,080,190 100.00% $982,193 100.00%
   Total Operating Expenditures $1,080,190 $982,193

Changes in Net Position ($5,637) $320,592

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 24



 
Requests for Information 
Our financial report is designed to provide our taxpayers, Hood River County residents, investors and creditors 
with an overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate District’s accountability. Questions concerning 
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to Hood 
River County Library District, 502 State Street Hood River, OR 97031, 541-387-7062, 
info@hoodriverlibrary.org. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Rachael Fox, Library Director 
Hood River County Library District 
 
 
 
 

-7-
V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 25



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HOOD RIVER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT 
HOOD RIVER COUNTY, OREGON 

 
 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 26



HOOD RIVER COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT
HOOD RIVER COUNTY, OREGON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – MODIFIED CASH BASIS
 June 30, 2021

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,226,078           
Property taxes receivable 54,525                

Total Assets 1,280,603           

LIABILITIES:

Payroll liabilities 3,493                  
Compensated absences 16,866                

Total Liabilities 20,359                

NET POSITION:

Unrestricted 1,260,244           

Total Net Position $ 1,260,244           

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

-8-

V.ii. Audit 2020-21 – Financial report 27



Blank page 28



VI.iii. November 2021 Financial Statements 29



VI.iii. November 2021 Financial Statements 30



VI.iii. November 2021 Financial Statements 31



VI.iii. November 2021 Financial Statements 32



VI.iii. November 2021 Financial Statements 33



VI.iii. November 2021 Financial Statements 34



VI.iii. November 2021 Financial Statements 35



VI.iii. November 2021 Financial Statements 36



VI.iii. November 2021 Financial Statements 37



COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT BOOKMOBILE

The Hood

River Cultural

Trust

Cathi 
Lannon

Waucoma 

Bookstore

Elaine & 
Scott 

Johnson

WyeastLaboratories, Inc.

Jean & Craig Sheppard

Friends and 

Neighbors 

Book Club

Remembering Joe and Kay Higgins

Duckwall 
Fruit

Ron Cohen

Ron Cohen

Christie Smith

Christie Smith

KJ Cohen

KJ Cohen

Remembering 

Laura Schaefer

Remembering 

Laura SchaeferThe Hackett Family

The Hackett Family

M
ark Patterson

M
ark Patterson

Beth JoyceBeth Joyce

COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT BOOKMOBILE
KJ Cohen

KJ Cohen

Remembering 

Laura Schaefer

Remembering 

Laura Schaefer

Beth JoyceBeth Joyce

HoodRiverLibrary.org

HoodRiverLibrary.org

COUNTY LIBRARY DISTRICT BOOKMOBILE

17331 Miami-Dade Public Library System

BIBLIOTECA DE COSAS 

A
lc

an
ce

Imprimir Copias

Library of Things

Library of Things

C
o

m
putado

rasm
ov

ie
s

wifi
storytimes

fu
n 

ev
en

ts

co
m

pu
te

rs

Eventos divertidos

Libros

Libros Electrónicos

audiobooks
eBOOKS

AudiolibrosTiempo de Cuentos

hood

VIII.i. Bookmobile exterior 38


